
EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 
If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately.  Follow the green signs.  Use the stairs 
not the lifts.  Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

Notice of Meeting 

Climate Change Advisory Panel 
Councillors Virgo, Mrs McKenzie-Boyle, Dr Barnard, 
Mrs Hayes MBE, Mrs Ingham, Kennedy, Leake, Mossom, Parker 
and Temperton 
Thursday 26 January 2023, 5.00  - 7.00 pm 
Council Chamber - Time Square, Market Street, Bracknell, RG12 
1JD 

  
Agenda 

All councillors at this meeting have adopted the Mayor’s Charter  
which fosters constructive and respectful debate. 

Item Description Page 
 
1.  Apologies for Absence   
 
2.  Declarations of Interest   

 Members are asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary or affected 
interests in respect of any matter to be considered at this meeting. 
 
Any Member with a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in a matter should 
withdraw from the meeting when the matter is under consideration and 
should notify the Democratic Services Officer in attendance that they are 
withdrawing as they have such an interest. If the Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interest is not entered on the register of Members interests the Monitoring 
Officer must be notified of the interest within 28 days. 
 
Any Member with an affected Interest in a matter must disclose the interest to 
the meeting.  There is no requirement to withdraw from the meeting when the 
interest is only an affected interest, but the Monitoring Officer should be 
notified of the interest, if not previously notified of it, within 28 days of the 
meeting.  

 

 
3.  Minutes  1 - 8 

 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Climate 
Change Panel on 10 October 2022.  

 

 
4.  Urgent Items of Business   

 Any other items which, pursuant to Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the Chairman decides are urgent.  

 

 
5.  Bracknell Forest Council Annual Climate Change Strategy Update  9 - 34 

 To receive a presentation on the Council’s Annual Climate Change Strategy. 
Reporting: Kevin Gibbs 

 

 
6.  Walking and Cycling Strategy   



EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 
If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately.  Follow the green signs.  Use the stairs 
not the lifts.  Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

 To receive a presentation on the Walking and Cycling Strategy. 
Reporting: Neil Mathews 

 

 
7.  National Management Trainee Placement Progress  35 - 44 

 To receive an update on the National Management Trainee Placement 
Progress. 
Reporting: Sebastian Wright 

 

Sound recording, photographing, filming and use of social media is permitted.  Please 
contact Hannah Harding, 01344 352308, hannah.harding@bracknell-forest.gov.uk, so that 
any special arrangements can be made. 
Published: 18 January 2023 



 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE ADVISORY PANEL 
10 OCTOBER 2022 
4.30  - 6.48 PM 
  

Present: 
Councillors Virgo (Chair), Mrs Hayes MBE, Mrs Ingham, Kennedy, Leake, Mossom and 
Temperton 
Apologies for absence were received from: 
Councillors Mrs McKenzie-Boyle 
Also Present: 
Councillor Bettison OBE 

10. Declarations of Interest  
There were no declarations of interest. 

11. Minutes  
The minutes of the Climate Change Advisory Panel on 8 June 2022 were approved. 
  
Arising from the minutes, it was noted that latest Borough-wide emissions statistics 
had been included in the annual report and referred to BEIS estimates for 2019. 
  
The 2020 statistics were now available and the overall figure for the borough had 
dropped again from 426.1kT to 392.8kT (a 33.3kT drop). In addition, the emissions 
per capita dropped from 3.5 tonnes CO2 to 3.2 tonnes CO2. 
  
However, a note of caution was added as March 2020 saw the first wave of COVID-
19 and the subsequent national clampdowns on travel and (certain) businesses 
opening throughout the rest of the year. The reduction should therefore be taken in 
that context. 

12. Urgent Items of Business  
There were no Urgent Items of Business. 

13. Climate Change Officer  
Faith Everett, Bracknell Forest Council’s new Climate Change Officer, attended the 
meeting to give a presentation on Climate Change and the Cost of Living 
  
The presentation set out the bigger picture for Bracknell residents and signposted 
some things that may help ease the pressure as well as detailing some ideas that all 
could be done everyday to help make a difference.   
  
Arising from the presentation, the following points were noted: 
  

       Climate change amplified the growing cost of living crisis. 
       The heatwave in summer 2022 had likely increased many peoples water bills. 

1

Agenda Item 3



 

 

       It had been stated that the cost of climate change was 6 times higher than 
originally anticipated. 

       In September 2022, 91% of UK households reported an increase in their cost 
of living. 

       The household mainly attributed the increase to the rise in the cost of food, 
rising utility bills, and a sharp increase in the cost of fuel.  

       Weekly food shopping for an average family of four had increased by 8% 
compared to the same time last year. 

       The average energy bill per month for a 3-bed home was likely to increase 
from £164 to £296. 

       The average price of fuel was £1.92 per litre for fuel and £1.99 per litre for 
diesel, this was 40-45% higher than the previous year.  

       Poel were paying 64% more at the pump in July 2022 then they were in 
January 2022. 

       The impact wasn’t a one size fits all and impacted people differently. 
       Recent research showed that domestic gas use contributed to 70% of 

domestic emissions across Bracknell.  
       Advice and support on energy efficiency at home including warm safe and well 

Public Health funding could all be found on the Bracknell Forest Council 
website.  

       10% of household heat loss was through poor windows. 
       There were a number of energy supplier grants and schemes and could be 

found on the citizens advice website.  
       The transport sector was one of the highest contributors to local carbon 

emissions and also one of the sectors with the highest rate of inflation. 
       In Bracknell Forest, transport made up 35% of the borough’s total greenhouse 

gas emissions. 
       Love to Ride and Eco Rewards were free active travel sign up platforms which 

rewarded sustainable travel choices. 
       The Council was currently installing 32 additional EV charging points at local 

neighbourhood hubs. 
       The Council was encouraging residents to consider alternative methods of 

travel with active commuting and flexible working policies. 
       The way food contributed to climate change was broad, through production 

and processing of food, food delivery miles, packaging, storage and 
preparation, and food waste. 

       The demand for the local food bank had double since this time last year. 
       The Council were developing a climate change ‘daily tips’ section on the 

website to encourage behaviour change and help save residents money. 
       The Council had a successful food waste scheme across the borough. This 

had since been extended to 25% of flats in the borough and since starting had 
divert almost 6000 tonnes of food waste from landfill. 

       BFC comms and marketing were helping to encourage individual actions as 
some of the most effective ways to tackle rising emissions that could also 
impact rising costs. 

       £900k had been secured via the Green Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery 
1A, funding improving energy efficiency within hard to heat homes. This had 
delivered 123 retrofit measures to 99 resident’s homes.  
  
Arising from the presentation the following points were raised: 
  

       Faith felt that joined up working, building networks and working together 
across the borough was important to tackle climate change.  

       A flexible dynamic approach was needed. 

2



 

 

       300 flats were currently part of the food waste scheme. There was a criterion 
that flats needed to meet in order to be part of the scheme. 1800 flats would 
eventually be part of the scheme, which was 20% of the flats in the borough.  

       Olio app had been circulated by Cllr Mrs Temperton in Great Hollands, and 
the uptake had been fantastic, and was really working well in Great Hollands.  

       Cllr Mrs Temperton would circulate with Cllr Mrs Hayes and Faith what had 
been included in Great Hollands Matters in regard to the Olio app. 

       Royal Berkshire Fire Service would be providing a Winter hub in Crowthorne 
Fire Station. 

       Winter Hubs were outside of the Climate Change remit, but work was being 
undertaken in the Council by Katie Flint. 

       The website was being redesigned, and the timeframe for the daily tip was 
currently unknown.  

       It was unlikely the Council would supply generators in a black out. Kevin 
Gibbs would look at the emergency planning too see what was detailed.  

       Sandhurst Community Centre were looking into opening their building for 
vulnerable people with no heating.  

       The Council had a list of vulnerable people within the borough with medical 
infrastructure at home. So, the Council would be able to act quickly in a black 
out situation.   

14. Head of Climate Change's Update  
Gareth Jones, Head of Climate Change and Sustainable Living presented the Green 
Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery (LAD 2 and 3) update. 
  
Gareth provided an insight on the funding that is available and has been available for 
retrofitting homes. 
  
Green Homes Grant funding was the general overarching bracket and BEIS 
distributed the money. Bracknell Forest Council had previous success with LAD 1A 
which had allowed for retrofitting in a number of properties across the borough. The 
Green Homes Grant funding covered a range of retrofitting including wall/loft/floor 
insulation, solar panels and heat pumps. The funding focused on homes that were 
hard to heat, generally with an E, F or G energy efficiency rating and also those on 
low levels of income, which tended to be those households with less than £30k 
disposable income after rent or mortgage payments. 
  
The most recent batches of funding were LAD 2 and LAD 3, with the latter also being 
referred to as sustainable warmth. Both of these projects had slightly different 
delivery than LAD 1. 
  
For LAD 2 the council had initially been allocated £276k for work within Bracknell 
Forest Council, this was part of a Berkshire wide bid. However, there was a delay in 
arranging the Managing Agent for the scheme, and were only in place in December 
2021, when the scheme was due to start in April 2021. As a consequence of the 
delay, Bracknell Forest Councils allocation was reduced to £87k. Bracknell Forest 
Council identified 32 potential properties, and these were put forward to the 
managing agent to consider. Following surveys 14 homes had been put forward for 
possible works allocation subject to the procurement of contractors. Gareth advised 
that of those 14, 8 were definitely having work done, 4 were waiting for further 
information and 2 had unfortunately been cancelled.  
  
For Sustainable Warmth (LAD 3) the scheme was supposed to start in April 2022 and 
run for a calendar year. Bracknell Forest Council had bid for a standalone grant which 

3



 

 

was an unsuccessful bid of £1.3m. However, after the Council received notification of 
the unsuccessful bid GSEEH proposed a Berkshire wide approach as they had bid 
successfully across Berkshire. Bracknell Forest Council expressed an interest that 
they wished to be included, and confirmation had been received in the last week that 
this had been granted. The scheme had been slow and work had only started in the 
last month, and late inclusion hadn’t hindered the council too much, however 
timescales were tight with work needing to be finished by March 2023. Funding 
included a budget of £10k to support marketing efforts which needed to be 
undertaken in October. 
  
GSEEH were now reporting improvement in their staff resourcing which at times had 
impacted the schemes. At one point there was a delay of 12 weeks from identification 
by the Council to the first survey.  
  
The survey led to an advised ‘shopping list’ of retrofit works required which could be 
one, two or three different improvements. A procurement exercise was then 
undertaken, with 3 contractors able to bid for each improvement, and were able to bid 
for more than one. The works was then agreed if it fell within budget. It was quite 
complicated as households could have more than one contractor working within their 
house. 
  
The Council were still waiting on confirmation of LAD 2 successes and with the news 
of inclusion to Sustainable Warmth (LAD 3) targeted marketing was about to 
commence. 
  
Looking forward Hazel Hill had a database of properties in the council which showed 
the energy rating of around 95% of homes in the borough which allowed for targeted 
marking for the management agent. 
  
Home Upgrade Grant Funding was now being promoted as Sustainable Warmth was 
nearing an end, wave 2 was open now until the end of October and Bracknell Forest 
Council would express an interest in funding. 
  
SILVA Homes were currently biding for wave 2 of the Social Housing 
Decarbonisation Fund, which was a separate funding stream route. It was unsure 
what this bid would be, but a lot of work had been undertaken over the summer.  
  
During a period of discussion, the following points were made, and answers were 
given: 
  

       GSEEH were an organisation appointment by the Government.  
       Each of the hubs were responsible for specific areas of the country. 
       The council acted as signposting in the schemes 
       There had been some confusing regarding the contractors in LAD 2 but going 

onto LAD 3 the process should be better and resident’s questions would be 
better answered going forward. 

       Each funding scheme differed under eligibility criteria, it was a generalisation 
that most targeted homes were energy inefficient and fell under a E,F or G 
rating. An up to day EPC certificate for the home would also be looked out. 
For financial eligibility, households would need to have a take home income of 
circa £30k per annum after mortgage or rent payments.  

       The database contained information from a number of sources and was a live 
database. Hazel also had access to a national database and was able to take 
information directly from residents. 

4



 

 

       Residents are advised to take a fabric first approach and make their houses 
as airtight as possible. Then they can look in to heating systems such as solar 
panels or heat pumps.  

       The energy efficiency pages on the Bracknell Forest Council website were a 
very good starting point and could be found under the housing section.  

       Gareth was unsure if all housing associations were spoken too and would 
check the interactions with Hazel and would report back. 

15. Octopus Energy  
Simon Connelly from Octopus Energy joined the meeting to provide an industry view 
on the current energy crisis.  
  
Simon provided an insight into Octopus’s Energy Saving Sessions or Blackout 
Busters which had been launched today. Anyone who had a smart meter was able to 
apply for the trial scheme which had also tentatively been run the previous year. It 
was based on a first come first services but was hoped it would be rolled out further 
in the future. The reason of the scheme was to encourage users to shift their energy 
outside of peak times, to take pressure away from the national grid. It would hope the 
scheme would help with pinch points in usage and sway from any negative impact’s 
energy peak usage may have, such as outages which had been mentioned by the 
Government and media.  
  
It was a two-pronged attack, looking to reduce amount of pinch points during the 
winter and help drive down the high wholesale market cost of energy. The unit rate 
had been so high over the past few years due to the demand on the National Grid. 
40% of the distribution operator was gas powered, so the more usage could be drive 
down the less gas the power stations would need to use, which would have a positive 
knock on effect.  
  
During a period of discussion, the following points were made and answers were 
given: 
  

       By industry standards at least once a year payment adequacy reviews had to 
be run on customer accounts. This would look at the estimated annual energy 
consumptions which were generated by historical readings. The users 
monthly direct debit payments were then based on that annual estimated 
consumption. This provided a clear and transparent estimation to customer on 
how much their payments were likely to be. 

       Octopus ran payment adequacy reviews more than once a year, as they liked 
to be transparent and honest with their customers.  

       Any negative amounts would trigger an automatic payment adequacy review, 
and the same if an account had too much credit. 

       The average monthly cost for a family of four was around £200-£300 a month 
on energy usage.  

       Every household and home were different. 
       Octopus had over 5million customers. 
       The Government scheme was for every household to have a smart meter by 

2025. 
       It was advised to set your boiler at a certain temperature.  
       Octopus were putting a lot of investment into air source heat pumps and had 

recently bought an air source heat pump company and were trying to drive 
down the cost and the side of the pumps. 

       Many customers were hesitant about smart meters due to the misinformation 
out there. Many people believed that companies controlled the energy through 

5



 

 

the smart meter which wasn’t possible. The smart meter communicated 
energy usage remotely to the companies.  

       The only way companies know if your home or away is through your energy 
usage. It would not be used to track people. 

       Data was used from smart meters to help bill people correctly and show 
energy usage.  

       Every direct debit came with a direct debit guarantee. By law 10 days’ notice 
had to be given for any changes, Octopus gave 30 days to allow conversation 
with customers.  

       Every generation of smart meter was improving. Companies had to be careful 
with full access to smart meters. 

       Octopus were currently developing their own in-house display units.  
       Economy 7 meters were still used by Octopus and was available if people 

wished to request them. 
       If people had the capacity to have battery storage, then that was encouraged.  
       Octopus always encouraged customers to speak to them directly about tariffs.  
       Tariffs were governed by the price cap, which would keep being increased. 
       The energy bill support scheme offered support to everyone and would be 

split into 6 monthly payments until March. 
                                                                                   

16. Executive Member for the Environment's Update  
Councillor Mrs Dorothy Hayes, Executive Member for the Environment and Kevin 
Gibbs, Executive Director of Resources presented the Climate Change Strategy 
Update.  
  
The presentation would cover: 
  

       London Road EV Charging hub update 
       EV Charging Hub Update – Oxford Electric Vehicle Superhub  
       Recycling Roadshows 
       EV Chargers Roll Out 
       Running out of Time – Baton Relay 

  
London Road EV Charging Hub  
  
The initial work had been undertaken with Planning, and an appraisal had been 
undertaken for the delivery of solar generation on the site. The site was just of the 
A329 and provided a good background to capture electric vehicle movement. There 
were 3 petrol forecourts within a close radius of the site. The plan was for a charging 
hub plus a small retail unit and café. To power the hub, it was hoped a solar array 
would be installed on the site and onsite battery storage, to take the pressure away 
from the grid. It was planned to be like a petrol station but for electric vehicles.  
  
EV Charging Hub Update – Oxford Electric Vehicle Superhub  
  
Members visited the Electric Vehicle Superhub on Thursday 1 September 2022. The 
site had a charging up and onsite battery storage. The Council would be working in 
partnership with Oxford City Council with moving the plans forward for the London 
Road site. Councillor Mrs Hayes had held a site visit with the local MPs and 
ministers. A further visit to a site in Essex was planned.  
  
Recycling Roadshow 
  

6



 

 

The Recycling roadshow had taken place on the 10 September 2022. The final 
tonnage from the roadshow was 1.7 tonnes WEEE and 1.6 tonnes clothing which 
were diverted from landfill. A campaign for recycling batteries had been launched 
anywhere a battery had been purchased they could be recycled. The next roadshow 
would be in March 2023. 
  
EV Chargers Roll Out 
  
Warfield Park had made a significant investment in EV charging points for all its 
rented homed in Harvest Lea and 15 charging points had been put on site. Over the 
next three years there were plans for 82 new park homes, all would have EV 
charging points.  
  
The 32 proposed charging points across the Borough would be installed by the end of 
the month. These were part of a government funded scheme which would typically 
recouple costs over a 10-year lease. The units were 22kw fast chargers. 
  
Running out of Time – Baton Relay 
  
Day 8 of the Running out of Time – Baton Relay was held in Bracknell Forest; Gareth 
Jones ran the inward leg from Wokingham to Bracknell and Damian James ran the 
outward leg from Bracknell to Windsor. The relay was from Glasgow and would make 
its way to Sharm el-Sheikh in Egypt. The baton held a message from young people in 
Glasgow to the young people in Sharm el-Sheikh and the decision makers at COP.  
  

17. Date of Next Meeting  
The Democratic Services Officer would consult with the Chair to find a suitable date 
for the next meeting of the Climate Change Advisory Panel. 

CHAIRMAN 

7



This page is intentionally left blank

8



Bracknell Forest Council 
Annual Climate Change Strategy 

Update For
Climate Change Advisory Panel

9

A
genda Item

 5



Kevin Gibbs
Executive Director: Delivery

Bracknell Forest Council

Climate Change Strategy 
update (Q1 and Q2 

2022/23)

10



Climate Change Strategy Update
Agenda

• 1st Year report summary
• CCAP Programme
• Exec Director Strategic update
• BFC Programme Highlights
• Q&A

11



Bracknell Forest Council: 2020/24 Action Plan
BFC Climate Change Strategy

First Year annual report summary

12



Climate Change Strategy Update

Climate Change 
Strategy 
Annual report on 
progress 2021/22

Climate change strategy - annual report 2021 to 2022 
(bracknell-forest.gov.uk)

13

https://www.bracknell-forest.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2022-08/climate-change-strategy-annual-report.pdf
https://www.bracknell-forest.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2022-08/climate-change-strategy-annual-report.pdf


Headline Metrics from 2021

Climate Change Annual Report

BFC’s total CO2e emissions from the council’s transport fleet, plus gas, 
electric and water consumption was 5,028 tonnes in 2021 (5.03kT). This 

compares to the initial figure of 6,178 in 2019 and 5,326 from 2020.

14



0.0

100.0

200.0

300.0

400.0

500.0

600.0

700.0

800.0

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Borough emissions 2005-2019 kT CO2e

Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy department data (BEIS) up to 2019. 
BFC 2019 data was 426.1kT CO2e which is down by 18.2kT from 444.3 in 2018 
and compares to our initial benchmark of 728.5kT in 2005, representing a 41.5% 

reduction overall.

Climate Change Annual Report

15



Bracknell Forest Council: 2020/24 Action Plan
BFC Climate Change Strategy

Climate Change Advisory Panel  
Programme

16



Bracknell Forest Council: CCAP Programme 
Climate Change Strategy Update

TBC June 2023 onwards: 
• London Road (EV charging hub). Report on investigations so far
• Member feedback on the visits to Oxford City EV SuperHub and Basildon EV 

charging hub
• BFC Programme plan end of Q4 update report – Kevin Gibbs, Executive Director: 

Delivery
• Review draft of the Climate Change Strategy progress summary (Annual report to 

Council)
• End of NMT placement update
• Climate Emergency Action Scorecards update (Autumn)

09 March 2023:

• Corporate Property - £1M retrofit projects update 
• BFC Programme plan end of Q3 update report - Kevin Gibbs, Executive 

Director: Delivery17



Bracknell Forest Council: 2020/24 Action Plan
BFC Climate Change Strategy

Executive Director Strategic update

18



Bracknell Forest Council: Executive Director’s update
Strategic highlights

Public Health: - Public Health funding is now supporting a number of climate change programmes. 
Projects include the Eco Rewards Behaviour Change Incentive Scheme (encouraging active modes 
of travel); Green and Active Heroes (engaging volunteers in outdoor biodiversity / green space 
activities); Improving Air Quality (funding monitoring equipment and resources); and reducing the 
impacts of poor housing.

Climate Change Strategy Update

Business engagement – our climate change team has begun the process of 
encouraging closer engagement and signposting support for local businesses 
interested in starting their own climate change mitigation journeys.

Decarbonising our own estate – our Property Services team have put 
forward £1M worth of plans to retrofit several buildings to make them more 
energy efficient and to introduce renewable energy installations.

19



Bracknell Forest Council: Executive Director’s update

Strategic Highlights continued:

Energy Group – we have created a group from Officer’s responsible for managing council facilities 
to specifically look at projects aimed at reducing our levels of utility consumption and further 
lowering our carbon footprint. 

London Road (Strong's Heath) site – a feasibility study has been completed for the creation of 
an EV charging hub with supporting dwell-time facilities and renewable power generation and 
storage via a solarPV farm and battery cells.

Climate Change Strategy Update

Building Regs – from June 2022 all LA’s have adopted updated Building 
Regulations (part S) which now include the mandatory provision of EV 
charging points on all new residential developments.

20



Bracknell Forest Council: Executive Director’s update

Strategic Highlights continued:

Local Plan – once adopted the new Local Plan will tighten the expectations placed upon developers 
(both residential and commercial) with regards the provision of on-site renewable generation and 
overall energy efficiency.

Housing Strategy – the new draft housing strategy will include our ambitions to ensure that homes 
within the borough are as energy efficient as possible. This will include working with partners such 
as Silva Homes who will bid for Social Housing Decarbonisation Funding in Q3 to enable their own 
efforts to retrofit their housing stock.

Climate Change Strategy Update

21



Bracknell Forest Council: 2020/24 Action Plan
BFC Climate Change Strategy

BFC Programme Highlights from 
Q1 and Q2 22/23

22



Bracknell Forest Council: 2022/23 Action Plan
As a reminder the Strategy is supported by an Action Plan covering the full 
breadth of council services. 

Quarterly reporting via 
• Internal Officer board – Chaired by Damian James
• Climate Change Advisory Panel supported by Kevin Gibbs

• Domestic Energy Efficiency (7)
• Corporate Estate and Property (6)
• Biodiversity (8)
• Waste (4)
• Transport & Highways (10)

• Procurement (1)
• Air Quality (4)
• Planning (4)
• External Projects supported by 

BFC (1)

Currently 45 live projects / initiatives 

Climate Change Strategy Update

23



Parks & Countryside

Wildflower Biodiversity – alterations to 
highways verge cutting arrangements to help 
promote biodiversity and encourage wildlife 
habitats.

Bracknell Forest Council: Place, Planning and Regeneration
Climate Change Strategy Update

Green and Active Heroes - a green 
community volunteering scheme developed in 
partnership with Involve Community Services

Intended to increase green volunteering opportunities 
for residents, including tree planting, hedge laying 
and pond creation.

Active volunteering within green spaces improves 
physical and mental health, but also helps the local 
environment at the same time.

24

https://involve.community/?medium=email&source=GovDelivery


Bracknell Forest Council: Place, Planning and Regeneration

Community EV charging - The roll out of 32 
new residential electric vehicle charging points 
across the borough will commence in Q3. These 
will be low wattage (22kW) chargers, aimed at 
overnight charging.

Climate Change Strategy Update

To help protect your privacy, PowerPoint has blocked automatic download of this picture.

To help protect your privacy, PowerPoint has blocked automatic download of this picture.

My Journey App - Travelling around the borough just got 
easier with the launch of the new My Journey Bracknell Forest 
website. It helps residents and employees to to travel more 
actively and sustainably around the borough. The site hosts 
information on walking, cycling, buses, trains, electric vehicles 
and community transport, as well as helpful journey planner 
tools. You can also sign up to the My Journey newsletter for all 
things travel.

Highways and Transport

25

https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDEsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMjEwMTMuNjUwNTQ2OTEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL215am91cm5leS5icmFja25lbGwtZm9yZXN0Lmdvdi51ay8_ZmJjbGlkPUl3QVIzZ0JySTkwSFBOOGl0LVpkYTNBVDhOalZLUGhCdWNpX0ZHWE1wVWxLMTh4c0VpUzNsNW5sRjB0ZFUmbWVkaXVtPWVtYWlsJnNvdXJjZT1Hb3ZEZWxpdmVyeSJ9.2_CtoZOcAtkPuSkPEzmqhjh5qJgaQATgsQdXT8-_s9k/s/672525234/br/145823510028-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDIsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMjEwMTMuNjUwNTQ2OTEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL3B1YmxpYy5nb3ZkZWxpdmVyeS5jb20vYWNjb3VudHMvdWticmFja25lbGwvc3Vic2NyaWJlci9uZXc_dG9waWNfaWQ9dWticmFja25lbGxfNjMifQ.HwM0mFn4RmdaiXNSltJbsytAKm94zbS9BUjqlobHG5A/s/672525234/br/145823510028-l


Bracknell Forest Council: Place, Planning and Regeneration

Love to Ride – September was Love to Ride 
month with residents incentivised to log their 
cycling with the chance of winning prizes.

New EV Pool cars – two new Nissan Leaf 
EV’s were added to the council fleet for staff to 
book for work-related journeys.

Climate Change Strategy Update

Highways and Ringway have started 
collaborative work to help identify ways in which 
to reduce the CO2 emissions associated with 
maintenance works starting with the compound 
used for road re-surfacing.

Highways and Transport continued:

Reducing the carbon footprint of highway maintenance

26



• Performance on the council’s food waste recycling service has 
remained strong throughout the first two quarters of 22/23. The service 
is collecting an average of 2.44 Kg per household per week and has 
diverted over 2,700 tonnes of food waste from landfill this financial 
year. 

• The service has begun efforts to introduce food waste collections from 
specific flats with 200 added to the service by the end of Q2. Feasibility 
studies for further additions are ongoing.

Bracknell Forest Council: Delivery
Climate Change Strategy Update

• The service’s most recent recycling roadshow saw our residents recycling 1.7 
tonnes of small electricals and 1.6 tonnes of clothing. All items collected can 
either be recycled or re-used, further saving on unnecessary landfill.

Environmental Services – Greening our Waste / improving our recycling

• For the second year running the waste and recycling service was short listed 
as finalists for the 2022 National Recycling Awards, the awards ceremony 
was in December. 

27



Bracknell Forest Council: Delivery
Climate Change Strategy Update

Property Services –

Progress on the new Commercial Centre development has 
been stop / start but once complete it will include solar 

PV cells on the roof, plus EV charging.

Executive approval of £1m worth of building retrofits to 
install low carbon technologies and improve insulation 

thereby lowering energy demands.

Submitted planning pre-app for 7 new temporary homes 
for homeless households constructed to BREEAM 

Excellent standards.

28



Bracknell Forest Council: Delivery
Climate Change Strategy Update

Domestic Energy Efficiency –

• Public Health funding has enabled residents to benefit from our Warm, 
Safe and Well scheme. The scheme part-funds energy efficiency 
projects in the homes of residents who are vulnerable to the effects of 
the cold.

• Following a very prolonged wait to hear if BFC has access to any 
Sustainable Warmth funding, BEIS confirmed at the end of Q2 that we 
can attempt to allocate up to £1M worth of funding. Targeted marketing 
activities will commence in Q3. 

• Similarly the delayed launch of the next phase of the 
Energy Company Obligation (ECO4) fund will also 
allow targeted marketing to commence here too next 
quarter.

• Winner of the ‘Local Authority of the Year” award at 
the South-East Energy Efficiency Awards.

29



Bracknell Forest Council: People

Schools’ Climate Change Conference:

Climate Change Strategy Update

Following the conference each school was awarded £500 to help 
them kick-start their climate change projects. Schools will be able 
to present a summary of their progress next year.

A secondary schools’ climate change conference 
was held at Garth Hill College in May with a 
keynote speech from wildlife expert and 
conservationist Chris Packham. All nine of the 
borough’s secondary schools were in 
attendance. 

The workshop enabled the students to develop an action plan project to 
take back to their school.

30



Bracknell Forest Council: Chief Executives
Climate Change Strategy Update

• The Green Giants Festival returned to The Lexicon town centre during 
the Summer holidays highlighting the health and wellbeing benefits of 

getting outdoors and the importance of green space conservation.

• The festival saw the launch of the Forest Guardians scheme whereby 
children were encouraged to make their own conservation and 

wellbeing pledges, plus the Green and Active Heroes 
scheme encouraging people to sign up to outdoor 
volunteering to help preserve the environment.

• The Green Giants Sprites were also lined up to support 
the baton relay handover within Lilly Hill Park of the 
‘Running out of Time’ relay which passed through 
Bracknell early in Q3. The baton conveyed climate 
change messages from Young People around the World 
for delivery at COP27 in Sharm-El-Sheik, Egypt in 
November.

31



Bracknell Forest Council: Chief Executives
Climate Change Strategy Update

• 18 climate change related stories issued 
between April and September 2022

• Councillors’ Climate Change newsletter 
launched

• Regular climate change stories slot secured 
in Town and Country

• Currently developing behavioural tips and 
tricks for residents

32



33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



BFC Climate Change Advisory Panel
National Graduate Development 
Programme Placement Projects

Sebastian Wright

35 A
genda Item

 7



Introduction

Key elements:
• Emissions trajectory work
• Parish and town council 

engagement
• Climate change business strategy 

and event

NGDP project duration: 31st Oct 22 – 31st March 2023

36



2,920 43 

1,987 

78 Natural Gas
Council Vehicles
Electricity
Water

2021 breakdown (tCO2e)6,178 
5,326 5,028 

2019
2020
2021

Total for year (tCO2e)

Bracknell Forest Council’s emissions

We measure and track:
• Scope 1 (direct emissions)
• Scope 2 (electricity)
• Emissions linked to water use

37



Scope 3
• Currently 

unreported by BFC 
(except water)

• Likely to be a 
significant element 
of our emissions

• Likely to be 
increasing pressure 
on us to report this 
in future

• Much harder to 
measure and project

Key sources of scope 3 emissions:

Production and transportation of 
purchased goods and services

Other fuel and electricity emissions 
e.g. transportation, transmission loss

Staff travel (excluding our 
fleet) and commuting

Investments

Water used

Transportation, use and 
disposal of sold products

Emissions from assets we lease or 
lease out (if not in scopes 1 or 2)

Outsourced 
services

e.g. waste 
disposal

38



-100.0

0.0

100.0

200.0

300.0

400.0

500.0

600.0

700.0

800.0

900.0

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Bracknell Forest - BEIS estimates of 
borough emissions (ktCO2e)

Industry Commercial Public Sector Domestic Transport LULUCF (Net Emissions) Agriculture Waste Total

39



Projecting our future emissions
Key aim: Estimate how our emissions will change in future under different scenarios

Key questions:
1. Which projection tools should we utilise?
2. Are we on track to achieve our net zero target?
3. Can we establish interim targets to measure our progress against?
4. Can we estimate the size of our emissions gap (the remaining emissions we won’t be 

able to mitigate and so will need to offset)?

Outcome: A report on 
expectations for our 

future emissions 
under different 

scenarios and options 
for interim targets

40



Parish and Town Council engagement
Aims:
• Build relationships with Town and Parish councils around climate change
• Help Town and Parish councils to measure their scope 1 and 2 emissions
• Facilitate co-operation between Town and Parish councils on climate change
• Share best practice and identify other opportunities for collaboration
Results:

All 6 
met with (clerks 

and/or councillors)

4
being supported to 
measure emissions

1
Climate Working 
Group attended

Next steps: 
• Sharing emissions measuring guide with parish and town councils
• Following up on opportunities for co-operation

41



Business climate action
Outcomes from 2021 local 
business survey:
• 51% intended to be more 

environmentally friendly
• 12% have set a specific 

target to achieve net zero
• 5% have placed a date to 

achieve this by 2030
2022 Business Survey 
results expected in Feb 
2023, including further 
questions to gauge scale of 
climate change engagement 
by local businesses.

42



Improving Council support
Ambitions:
• Creating a strategy for 

business engagement 
support

• Running a business climate 
event

• Working more closely with 
key partners

Aims:
• Seek a reduction in carbon emissions 

from businesses 
• Increased business engagement with 

climate and environmental issues
• Improved relationships between the 

council and local businesses
• Improved business performance and 

growth in Bracknell Forest
• Efficient and effective use of council 

resources

43



Questions and discussion44


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Bracknell Forest Council Annual Climate Change Strategy Update
	Slide Number 1
	Kevin Gibbs�Executive Director: Delivery�Bracknell Forest Council
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23
	Slide Number 24
	Slide Number 25

	7 National Management Trainee Placement Progress
	BFC Climate Change Advisory Panel�National Graduate Development Programme Placement Projects�Sebastian Wright�
	Introduction
	Bracknell Forest Council’s emissions
	Scope 3
	Slide Number 5
	Projecting our future emissions
	Parish and Town Council engagement
	Business climate action
	Improving Council support
	Questions and discussion


